ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 12, 2009
3:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald d son, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Li nda Menard

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 127
"An Act establishing the Southeast State Forest and relating to
the Southeast State Forest; and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 127

SHORT TITLE: SOUTHEAST STATE FOREST
SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

02/ 27/ 09 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 27/ 09 (S) CRA, RES

W TNESS REG STER

DEAN BROWN, Deputy Director

Di vision of Forestry

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 127.

GREG STAUNTON

Department of Natural Resources

Ket chi kan AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed SB 127.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2009



DI CK MYLIUS, Director

Di vision of Mning, Land, and Water

Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 127.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:33: 05 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:33 p.m
Senat ors Thomas, Kookesh, French, Menard, and O son were present

at the call to order.

SB 127- SOUTHEAST STATE FOREST

CHAI R OLSON announced the consideration of SB 127.

3:33: 53 PM

DEAN BROAN, Deputy Director, D vision of Forestry, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR), Anchorage, said there are only two
state forests in Alaska. The small acreage in SB 127 s
extrenely inportant to the tinber industry. The DNR manages over
156,000 acres of forest land in Southeast Alaska, and only
49,000 of those allow forest nmanagenent. She worked with the
Division of Mning, Land, and Wter Mnagenent and other
entities and narrowed down a proposed forest of 25,291 acres

The proposed forest will be excellent for dedicating as a |ong-
term | and base for tinber nmanagenent. Dedicated |and allows the
state to invest noney with assurance that it will be multiple-
use | and, which will include |ogging over a long tinme. “So noney
can go into thinning, for roading;, at the sane tine, we ve seen
in our other two state forests that it has greatly increased
public use for hunting and fishing, for access, and is a benefit
to local communities.” The proposal includes 20 separate parcels
in Southeast Alaska. It includes general use lands that are on
Prince of Wales, Tuxekan, Kosciusko, Heceta, Revilla, and
Gravina |Islands, and a small parcel on the mainl and.

3:36:14 PM

M5. BROMWN said the bill provides long-term forest availability
to smaller | ocal operations, so transportation is nore econom cC.
It is not a lot of land. The state doesn’t have nuch in
Sout heast. The Division of Forestry has been successful nmaking
tinber sales available to local industry, tiding them over until
t he Tongass National Forest can get additional tinber sales out.
The state has an agreenent to assist the Tongass in naking those

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2009



types of tinber sales nore econonic. There is a strong desire to
have a dedicated |land base to invest in. The lands are already
designated for forest purposes, so they have been through an
extensive public process. The division selected |ands that had
no conflict. They are not available for settlenents. Minicipa

entitlements are inportant, so the bill addresses that directly.
3:38: 30 PM
M5. BROMWN said the bill will not affect the anmount or |ocation

of land that the Cty and Borough of Wangell can select. The
boroughs have to select l|lands that are vacant or unreserved.
There are maps available in the comrittee packet. A dedicated
state forest is critical for the state to maintain a |and base
for tinber and multiple use, including mning, hunting, and
fishing. This would not preclude any existing uses. Once the
state forest is designated, there are three years to create a
forest plan, so that gives the public another opportunity to
corment on the land. The bill shows a |ong-term comm tnent by
the state to the Southeast region. It wll assist the tinber
i ndustry and help plan for the long term

3:40: 31 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked i f anyone opposes this bill.

M5. BROWN said she is not aware of any opposition. The DNR
wor ked hard to pick lands that had no conflicts.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if this is to make nore state |and
avai |l abl e for | ogging.

M5. BROMWN said the lands are currently available to |ogging, so
the intent is to thin the second growh to increase the yield,
and nmake the |l ands nore productive and increase nultiple use by
the creation of roads.

SENATOR FRENCH asked why that can't be done now.

3:42: 07 PM

M5. BROM said the current status allows for tinber sales, but
the lands could go to other interests. So putting state noney
into tinber managenent and roading wouldn’'t make sense. For a
60-year rotation it nmakes sense to invest the noney. The state
and the industry will get a good return.

CHAI R OLSON asked how the state will increase their coffers.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2009



M5. BROWN said a dedicated state forest can increase the yield
per acre. The value of the tinber sales will be higher. She said
the division is doing a tinber inventory.

SENATOR THOVAS asked who nmanages the remaining | and on the map.
M5. BROWMWN said the maps just show the lands for a state forest.
SENATOR KOOKESH sai d 600,000 acres is Native-owned.

3:44:51 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked how the division can get to sonme of the sites.
“I"”massumng there’s no roads out there.”

M5. BROWN said sone areas will have higher priority. After the
timber inventory, there may be land that Iends itself to
thinning very soon. There is an optimal tine for that. Sone of
the land will go into the dedicated |and base and sone probably
won't have active managenent for sone years to cone.

CHAI R OLSON asked what she neans by “long terni.

3:46:18 PM

M5. BROM said the time is related to tinber rotation, which can
be 60 years in a well-managed area to over 100 years. There
woul d be i medi ate action on sone of these parcels.

CHAIR OLSON asked if she nmeans there wll be data after 60
years.

M5. BROMWN said she expects sone of that information within a
month. All inventories should be done in the next year.

3:48: 01 PM

CHAIR OLSON said there nust be other |andholders besides
governnent and Native corporations. He asked if other |andowners
have an opi ni on.

M5. BROWN said the forest division has spoken with the Menta
Health Trust and the Division of Mning, Land, and Water

managenent. There are no individual [|andowners. The other
| andowners have felt that this was a good opportunity and none
have opposed it. Any action wll require public input for

adj acent | andowners and ot hers.

SENATOR MENARD sai d she appreci ates her detail ed presentation.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2009



SENATOR KOCOKESH said nost areas on the nap have extensive road
systens that were put in by the Native corporations, including
Edna Bay, Coffman Cove, and Thorne Bay. Seal aska helped wite

the Forest Practices Act and left $1 billion of wood because of
required buffer zones. The bill covers a small area, and roads,
stream buffers, and eagle nests w Il probably cut the | ogging

area in half. The inventory may find that there is not good
wood. The overseas market for cedar is good. This is a good
start and he conplinents DNR, but it should have been done 10
years ago, and all of Southeast should be a state forest. Maybe
the rest of the land can go into a state forest |ater.

CHAI R OLSON asked if revenue from harvesting the trees will be a
significant anount.

3:51:13 PM

M5. BROWN said the worldw de and Al aska markets haven’'t been
strong. Putting the land into a nanagenent category will
i ncrease revenue but she doesn’t know how ruch

SENATOR KOOKESH said the intent is to provide for |ocal demand.
There are 23 small, nomand-pop pulp mlls on Prince of Wiles
| sl and al one. There is no major pulp mll in Southeast anynore.
“If they could export all of their tinber, then they' d nmake sone
noney, but they can’'t. This is all state forest and it would be
only for use inside the state.”

CHAI R OLSON asked if the small pulp mlls are paying the state.

SENATOR KOCOKESH said they pay for it. “A lot of the pulp, it’s
not worth even dropping the tree ... it’s not worth it. If you
have a lot of pulp, youre in trouble, but we did neet with the
guitar people ... and the people who nake the Yanaha pianos.”
Sitka spruce is the wood used “in all of guitar country.” It
makes the best sounding boards. A person would do well by just
catering to the nusic industry in America.

3:52:52 PM

GREG STAUNTON, Departnent of Natural Resources, Ketchikan, said
nost of the parcels on Prince of Wales are accessible by road
“A couple off-island parcels have existing road systens in
them” They are “water-bound” but they have LTFs [log transfer
facilities] for noving tinber. The bill allows DNR to invest
time and noney into a piece of |land that can be manipulated to
meet the market. “We are basically encouraging a certain kind of
product, a tree, to grow on that land. A larger dianeter tree,
which will be nore utilized by the local market.” Leaving the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2009



trees alone would nean the stens would be smaller, and it would
likely not fit the local demand. It would be nore of a fiber-
based product instead of saw | ogs.

CHAIR OLSON asked if DNR has heard from Steve Burrell and the
m ni ng associ ati on.

DICK MYLIUS, Director, Dvision of Mning, Land, and Wter,
Anchorage, said he hasn’'t heard from him but the lands wll
still be open to mneral developnent. It wll not affect
existing mneral rights or the potential to stake m ning cl ains.

CHAI R OLSON asked if there are any mnes there.

MR. MYLIUS said not on these lands. There are projects being
| ooked at on Prince of Wales Island, but not on state |ands.

3:56: 01 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked what m nerals are being | ooked at.

MR. MYLI US said he doesn’'t know.

CHAIR OLSON said he will hold the bill so he can check with the
mning industry to make sure they know what is going on. He is
surprised that there is no opposition. It sounds like a good
bill.

3:56: 59 PM

M5. BROM said this bill has a good solid |land base that allows
the state to support the forest industry while allow ng mning,
recreation, hunting, and fishing. The division has nade every
effort to take care of any conflicts.

SB 127 was hel d over.

3:58:12 PM
The neeting was adjourned at 3:58 p.m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2009



